West Point City
Planning Commission Agenda

September 25, 2025
3200\;V300N West Point, UT ;1015 WEST POINT CITY HALL
801.776.0970 3200 W 300 N WEST POINT, UT

IF UNABLE TO ATTEND IN-PERSON, CITIZEN COMMENT MAY BE EMAILED PRIOR TO khansen@westpointutah.gov
- Subject Line: Public Comment — September 25, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting
- Email Body: Must include First & Last Name, address, and a succinct statement of your comment.

el Sl

Nk L=

WORK SESSION - 6:00 PM
Open to the public

Discussion of a rezone for property located at approximately 2000 N 5000 W (The Holland Group, applicant)
Review of agenda items

Staff update
Other items
GENERAL SESSION —7:00 PM
Open to the public
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance

Prayer/Thought (Please contact the Clerk to request to give a prayer or inspirational thought.)

Disclosures from Planning Commissioners

Public Comments (Please state your name and city at the podium before commenting. Limit comments to 2% minutes.)
Approval of minutes from the June 12, 2025, Planning Commission meeting

Approval of minutes from the August 28, 2025, Planning Commission meeting

Administrative Items
Administrative items are reviewed based on standards outlined in the ordinance. Public comment may be taken on relevant and
credible evidence regarding the application's compliance with the ordinance.

8.

Discussion and consideration for a conditional use for a 2,208 square foot accessory building on property located at
4662 W 650 N; Scott Turner, applicant

Discussion and consideration for a conditional use for a 1,750 square foot accessory building to be located at 4804
W 650 N; Samuel Wolfley, applicant

10. Planning Commission Comments
11. Adjournment

Posted this 23" day of September, 2025

KO&/UL JF\OW\J:.L}(\

Katie Hansen, Deputy City Recorder

If you plan to attend this meeting and, due to a disability, will need assistance in understanding or participating therein, please notify the City at least

twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting and we will seek to provide assistance.

Certificate of Posting

The undersigned, duly appointed Deputy City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted within the West Point City

limits on this 23™ day of September, 2025, at the following locations: 1) West Point City Hall Noticing Board 2) the City website at
http://www.westpointutah.gov 3) the Public Notice Website: http://www.utah.gov/pmn/index.html
Katie Hansen, West Point City Deputy Recorder


mailto:khansen@westpointutah.gov

WEST POINT CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES

3200 WEST 300 NORTH
WEST POINT CITY, UT 84015 JUNE 12, 2025

WORK SESSION
6:00 PM

Planning Commission Present: Chairperson PJ Roubinet, Vice-Chair Rochelle Farnsworth, Commissioner
Jeff Turner, Commissioner Joe Taylor, Commissioner Adam King, and Commissioner Spencer Wade

City Staff Present: Bryn MacDonald, Community Development Director; Katie Hansen, Deputy City
Recorder

City Staff Excused: Troy Moyes, City Planner

Visitors: Richard Roginski, Craig Jacobsen

1. Review of agenda items
Bryn MacDonald explained the first agenda item was for Russell Porter who had applied for
approval of a 3,450-square-foot accessory building on his one-acre property along 4500 W. The
building, to be located at the back of the lot, was not adjacent to any nearby homes and met all
required setbacks. Mr. Porter, who has been operating a cabinet-making home occupation from his
garage for several months without complaints, intended to move the business into the new
structure. Because the business would be relocated to an accessory building, it qualified as a major
home occupation requiring Planning Commission approval. Bryn MacDonald noted that neighbors
were aware of the business and had even assisted with it. Deliveries occurred only once or twice a
week, and customers did not come to the property, as Mr. Porter delivered cabinets directly to job
sites. Commissioner Roubinet raised concerns about whether deliveries might increase with the
larger space, emphasizing traffic as the only potential nuisance and Bryn MacDonald stated Mr.
Porter would be in attendance to find out. Commissioner King asked about driveway access, and
Bryn MacDonald confirmed Mr. Porter would extend his existing driveway to the new building,
noting that driveways had no setback requirements.

The second agenda item was an application for Dale Kruitbosch on 3800 W. The property was just
over half an acre, and the proposal included a 2,480-square-foot accessory building to be
constructed at the same time as the home. Since an accessory building must be tied to a home, staff
approved the plan as long as both structures were built concurrently. The site plan showed the
house in the front and the accessory building in the back. Because the building exceeded 1,500
square feet, a conditional use permit was required. Bryn MacDonald noted that the project met all
setback requirements and was designed to be exactly 10% of the lot area, the maximum size
allowed for that lot. She emphasized that the accessory building would not receive final approval
until the home had received a certificate of occupancy.

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 1 of 19



The third item Bryn MacDonald presented was an application for Doug Laub, who proposed a 1,920-
square-foot accessory building on his acre-and-a-half flag lot. The structure was planned as a
detached garage beside the home, likely replacing an existing awning. Because of the unusual lot
shape, there was discussion about whether the placement should be considered a side or front
yard. Bryn MacDonald explained that the code was unclear, but staff had treated it as a side yard,
requiring an eight-foot setback from the property line. The building also needed to maintain at least
six feet from the home and 15 feet from neighboring dwellings. Its proposed height was nearly 22
feet.

Several commissioners raised concerns about whether the site plan accurately reflected available
space, noting discrepancies between the drawings and aerial images. Bryn MacDonald confirmed
inspectors would verify setbacks during permitting and construction. Commissioners agreed the
motion should specify that the building must meet all code-required setbacks. During discussion,
Commissioner Turner observed that the application, along with others on the agenda, highlighted
the value of larger lots, offering balance against the frequent focus on smaller, affordable
developments.

Bryn MacDonald introduced the fourth item which was an application for Matt Leavitt, noting it had
been reviewed several times before. The request involved an R-4 rezone and accompanying
development agreement, though Mr. Leavitt’s proposed density was only 3.6 units per acre—below
the 3.7 minimum. A development agreement had been prepared to address this. Another issue was
the number of twin homes proposed. At 21%, Mr. Leavitt was one unit over the allowable 20%.
Commissioners discussed whether to round down to eight units, as the council had done in a recent
case, or allow 10, since Mr. Leavitt was not pushing maximum density. Bryn MacDonald explained
the code allowed 20% of the proposed units, not the maximum possible, so the commission could
decide how to apply that.

The group also revisited driveway access on 300 N. While the code restricted driveways there, Mr.
Leavitt’s plan added only one new access and created a loop, reducing the need to back out.
Commissioners noted concerns about neighbors potentially blocking access, but Bryn MacDonald
suggested requiring an easement to keep it open. Boyd Davis, the city engineer, had not raised
concerns about the driveway.

Questions arose regarding road ownership, right-of-way width, and whether Mr. Leavitt’s lot was
sufficient to accommodate the required 60-foot street width. Bryn MacDonald emphasized that the
rezone and development agreement only approved the concept plan; engineering details would be
addressed during subdivision review. If Mr. Leavitt could not meet road standards, the project could
not move forward regardless of the approvals. It was also noted that developments over 30 lots
required two access points, which Mr. Leavitt would need to provide at a later stage. Two separate
public hearings would be required, one for the rezone and one for the development agreement.

The fifth agenda item was to review the development agreement for Harvest Fields, explaining that
the proposal was to adjust a property line by about three to four feet to preserve existing trees
along the north lot. The change would allow a fence to be installed without disturbing the trees.
Commissioner King asked if the northern property owner would be purchasing the land, but

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 2 of 19



Craig Jacobson, speaking for the applicant, stated they were simply trying to be good neighbors. He
explained that the trees straddled the property line, and rather than remove them, which could cost
around $30,000, they chose to convey the land at no charge, creating a “win-win” situation.
Commissioner Roubinet noted that the adjustment would reduce one lot to below the 10,000-
square-foot minimum, requiring a development agreement to make the exception. Mr. Jacobson
added that without such an agreement, title issues could arise in the future when a loan
underwriter flagged the zoning noncompliance. Bryn MacDonald confirmed that the agreement
would specify the reduced lot size. The exact adjustment would be determined after a survey, but it
was expected to fall within three to four feet.

Bryn MacDonald introduced the final agenda item, the proposed A-20 agricultural residential zone.
She explained that the intent was to create a balance between agricultural preservation and
residential living. The permitted and conditional uses would mirror those already established in the
A-40 zone. The key difference lay in the development standards: the A-20 zone required a minimum
lot size of 20,000 square feet with a density of 1.7 units per acre, which allowed for half-acre lots
once roads were factored in. Other standards included 100-foot frontage and depth, setbacks of 30
feet in the front and rear and 10 feet on the sides, and consistent regulations for building height and
accessory structures.

Animal regulations would also remain the same, requiring enclosures to be at least 100 feet from
dwellings on adjacent lots. Bryn MacDonald noted that after reviewing lot layouts, this requirement
was still feasible on half-acre parcels. In response to a question from Commissioner Turner, she
clarified that animals were governed by a point system based on lot size. For example, a horse
required 25 points, which was roughly the allowance for a half-acre lot. This meant a property
owner could keep one horse or, alternatively, smaller animals such as goats or sheep, while chickens
were permitted without restriction.

Other items

Bryn MacDonald provided a council update, noting that the rezone for the two commercial lots on
the Nielsen property had been approved. Upcoming council agendas included public hearings for
the Mike Bastian PRUD, the Rojo Rose rezone, and the small area plans, which had already been
discussed twice and were expected to be approved. They would also be reviewing new PRUD code
language and landscaping code at the next meeting. The General Plan map had not yet been
presented, as staff wanted to bring it forward alongside the A-20 zone so both could be considered
together. Once the commission made a decision on A-20, both items would go to council.

Bryn MacDonald also reported that Ogden Clinic had submitted updated site plans and applications,
which would be on the commission’s next agenda, along with the residential portion of Nielsen
Crossing. Big-O Tires was preparing to open the first week of July, slightly delayed from July 1
because Rocky Mountain Power would not be able to set the meter until June 30. Bryn MacDonald
confirmed that the council had approved the two commercial spots in front of Big-O Tires, one
zoned but with no identified use yet, and the other approved for Nielsen’s Frozen Custard, with its
site plan forthcoming.

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 3 of 19



WEST POINT CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES

3200 WEST 300 NORTH
WEST POINT CITY, UT 84015 JUNE 12, 2025
2

GENERAL SESSION
7:00 PM

Planning Commission Present: Chairperson PJ Roubinet, Vice-Chair Rochelle Farnsworth, Commissioner
Jeff Turner, Commissioner Joe Taylor, Commissioner Adam King, and Commissioner Spencer Wade

City Staff Present: Bryn MacDonald, Community Development Director; Katie Hansen, Deputy City
Recorder

City Staff Excused: Troy Moyes, City Planner

Visitors: Richard Roginski, Craig Jacobsen, Eric Anderson, Doug Laub, Curtis Cottrell, Tyler Bitton, Katie
Haugen, Kurtis Haugen, Cande Booker, Zeb Booker, Marilyn Olds, Bethany Everett, Marv Drake, Michelle
Day, Kara Cooke, Connie Lee, DeAnn Ross, Sean Neilson, Dale Kruitboxch, Toney Family, Matt Leavitt,
Russell Porter, Frank Weiler, Tami Yeoman, Dixie Bunot

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Prayer — Commissioner King

Disclosures from Planning Commissioners

There were no disclosures from the Planning Commissioners.

PWNPE

5. Public Comments
There were no public comments.

6. Approval of minutes from the April 24, 2025, Planning Commission meeting
Commissioner Taylor motioned to approve the minutes from the April 24, 2025, Planning
Commission meeting. Commissioner King seconded the motion. All voted aye.

7. Conditional use permit for a 2,000 square foot accessory building on property located at 1646 N
4500 W; Russell Porter, applicant
Russell Porter, applicant, stated that he needed approval for both his home occupation and the
associated item to move forward and that he had no additional comments but was available for
guestions. Commissioner Roubinet asked about delivery vehicles and whether a pull-off area had
been planned. Mr. Porter explained that the property had a rock-lined shoulder where a 53-foot

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 4 of 19



trailer had parked previously and that he intended for deliveries to pull off there to stay off the
street, noting that he had designed the area with a large enough radius for vehicles to turn around.

There were no further questions.

Commissioner King motioned to approve the conditional use request for Russell Porter to construct
a 3,450 square foot accessory building on his property located at 1646 N 4500 W as presented.
Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion. All voted aye.

Conditional use permit for a major home occupation for RDP Cabinets & Millwork located at 1646
N 4500 W; Russell Porter, applicant

Russell Porter is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Major Home Occupation to operate RDP
Cabinets at his residence located at 1646 N 4500 W. The applicant was previously granted a Minor
Home Occupation in April 2025 to operate his business out of the home’s garage. With plans to
construct a new 3,450 square-foot accessory building for the business, the use now exceeds the
limitations allowed under a Minor Home Occupation specifically, the maximum of five percent of
the lot area. As a result, approval of a Major Home Occupation by the Planning Commission is
required.

The applicant previously obtained a Minor Home Occupation permit to operate a business out of
their attached garage. Under West Point City Code 17.70.140(D)(2), a Minor Home Occupation is
permitted to use “no more than 300 square feet or 20 percent of the gross floor area of the
dwelling—whichever is more lenient—and no more than 5 percent of the lot area when using an
accessory structure.”

The business is now transitioning to a new 3,450 square foot detached accessory building, which
occupies approximately 7.5 percent of the lot area. This exceeds the 5 percent cap for Minor Home
Occupations, necessitating a reclassification to a Major Home Occupation. According to West Point
City Code 17.70.140(E)(3), a Major Home Occupation allows the use of the entire accessory building
for the business, subject to applicable zoning and lot size limitations. There is no maximum square
footage for the business area within the accessory structure, provided the building itself complies
with other development standards. The applicant claims the business receives 1-2 deliveries a week.
Customers never come to the home. The business has been operating for several months at this
point and we have received no complaints.

There were no further questions.
Commissioner Farnsworth motioned to approve the conditional use permit for Russell Porter to

operate his cabinet shop out of his new accessory building located at 1646 N 4500 W. Commissioner
Turner seconded the motion. All voted aye.

Conditional use permit for a 2,480 square foot accessory building on property located at 1053 N
3800 W; Dale Kruitbosch, applicant

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 5 of 19



10.

Dale Kruitbosch is requesting a conditional use permit to construct a 2,480-square-foot accessory
building on his property located at 1053 N 3800 W. The property measures 0.56 acres, which is
equivalent to 24,487 square feet. According to West Point City code 17.70.030(A)(5), all accessory
buildings that exceed 1,500 square feet, regardless of the lot size, require a conditional use permit.

Accessory Buildings

Standard Required Proposed
Accessory buildings shall not oceupy no more than e

. X = - = 10% 10%
10% of the total lot area -
Minimum lot size for taller structures (sq fi) =21.780 24 487
Max structure height <35 246"
Mot closer than 53° from the main building =5 a5°
Must not be closer than 15" from any dwelling \ .

. =15 +50

structure on the adjacent lot. -

The home is in the process of being built right now. The desire of the applicant is to work on the
accessory building at the same time.

There were no further questions.

Commissioner Wade motioned to approve the conditional use request for Dale Kruitbosch to
construct a 2,480 square foot accessory building on his property located at 1053 N 3800 W as
presented. Commissioner King seconded the motion. All voted aye.

Conditional use permit for a 1,920 square foot accessory building on property located at 673 N
2300 W; Doug Laub, applicant

Doug Laub is requesting a conditional use permit to construct a 1,920-square-foot accessory
building on his property located at 673 N 2300 W. The property measures 1.53 acres, which is
equivalent to 66,812 square feet. According to West Point City code 17.70.030(A)(5), all accessory
buildings that exceed 1,500 square feet, regardless of the lot size, require a conditional use permit.

Accessory Buildings

Standard Required Proposed
Accessory buildings shall not occupy no more than ,

; ' =10% 3%
10% of the total lot area
Minimum lot size for taller structures (sq ft) =21,780 66,812
Max structure height =25 22
Not closer than 5° from the main building =5 6
Must not be closer than 15° from any dwelling ; -

. : =15 35
structure on the adjacent lot.
Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 6 of 19




According to the West Point City Code, the side yard setback for all accessory buildings in the rear
yard shall be five feet. The rear setbacks are shown in the table below. The proposed building is 22
feet tall, and therefore requires a 10-foot rear setback.

Doug Laub, applicant, stated the side setback measurements on the drawing was incorrect at 8’ and
should be 5’. Bryn MacDonald stated according to the code it needs to be 8'. Mr. Laub stated he
does not have the amount of space required and would prefer not to resort to a smaller accessory
building. It was determined due to this miscommunication to have Staff and the applicant meet and
discussion the plans to verify the correct setbacks before making a decision.

Commissioner King motioned to table the conditional use request for Doug Laub to construct a
1,920 square foot accessory building on his property located at 673 N 2300 W for two weeks so that
there's time to have them relook at plans and the code and make sure everything is correct and
acceptable. Commissioner King then amended the timing on the motion to state indefinitely.
Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion. All voted aye.

11. Discussion and consideration to rezone 13.14 acres located at 3900 W 300 N from R-2 to R-4 (6
units per acre); Matt Leavitt, applicant

Matt Leavitt has applied to rezone 13.14 acres of land located at approximately 3900 W 300 N, from
R-2 residential to R-4 medium-density residential. The property was currently zoned R-2, while the
General Plan had designated it as future R-4, a designation supported by the City Council, reflecting
surrounding land use patterns and the need for diverse housing options. The applicant proposed a
development consisting of 47 lots with a density of 3.6 units per acre, slightly below the R-4
minimum of 3.7 units per acre, which required a development agreement to allow the lower
density. The R-4 zone permitted up to six units per acre and allowed up to 20 percent twin homes,
which would allow up to nine twin homes, though the applicant proposed ten. The project included
draft CC&Rs, building elevations, and architectural information, with requirements that homes be
owner-occupied rather than rentals. One twin home faced 300 N, requiring an exception for a
driveway, which would need Planning Commission approval.

The proposed development was consistent with the General Plan and the intent of the R-4 zone for
medium-density residential neighborhoods with diverse housing options. The Planning Commission
had discussed the proposal in multiple meetings and noted that separate public hearings were
required for both the rezone and the development agreement. While the rezone would allow the
conceptual site plan to proceed, the subdivision itself still required review of engineering, utilities,
and other detailed plans as part of the subdivision process. The development agreement would
formalize approval of the proposed density and ensure that all other aspects of the project
remained consistent with the City’s planning objectives. Lot sizes varied, with the smallest at 5,200
square feet and most ranging between 7,800 and 9,100 square feet, and the conceptual plan
showed that the smaller lots were primarily those designated for twin homes.

a. Public Hearing
Richard Roginski, West Point: Mr. Roginski stated that he lived in one of the oldest houses, if not
the oldest, in West Point. He objected to the rezone to R-6, citing the density of the proposed

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 7 of 19



housing as a primary concern. He explained that the property was currently zoned R-2, which
allowed for 35 units, while an R-6 rezone would permit up to 78 units, and an R-3 would allow
47 units. He questioned why the allowance for density was being increased by such a large
amount, noting that there were two outlets, including one that might be questionable on 300 N,
and expressing concern about traffic near his neighbor, Connie Lee’s property. He stated that a
fair amount of traffic already came from 4000 W onto 300 N, and he was concerned about
future impacts. He reflected on having lived in the city since 1992 and observed that its
character had changed substantially. He questioned whether the development was intended
solely to maximize lot numbers or to preserve the character of the community. He recalled
serving on the planning commission 25 years prior and concluded that the property should
remain R-2, or at most R-3 to allow for 47 homes. He stated that the density in the area was
becoming excessive, citing a recent development across from the school as being out of
character,

Curtis Haugen, West Point: Mr. Haugen stated that he had lived in West Point off and on since
1989 and considered himself a lifelong resident. He expressed concerns about the density of the
proposed development and the resulting traffic on 3830 W, noting that residents often planned
their days around how to get off their street due to school and other activities. He explained
that he monitored traffic past his home with a camera and observed hundreds of cars daily,
which made the density particularly concerning. He expressed a personal concern about
property values, noting that when he moved in, he expected the area to remain zoned as it
currently was, and he worried that denser development could decrease the value of his home.
He also questioned the quality of the homes to be built, the proximity of structures to his fence
line, and the impact of sharing space with two homes behind him, including potential fencing
issues. He emphasized that his concerns were largely personal, wishing to see similar homes
built behind him rather than a dense development that would increase traffic. He acknowledged
that he had expected some development behind his home when he moved in and had enjoyed
the view since building his home in 2007, but he was concerned that the new development
would be more compact than anticipated. He concluded by echoing the broader concern about
rezoning to allow more homes.

Zeb Booker, West Point: Mr. Booker stated that he shared many of the concerns expressed by
others, particularly regarding the potential devaluation of homes. He emphasized that his
primary concern was the density of the proposed development and the resulting increase in
traffic. He noted that the area already experienced significant traffic from activities such as
soccer games, baseball games, and general activity around the park and school, with people
constantly coming and going. He explained that adding the proposed development would likely
contribute well over 100 additional cars, considering two vehicles per home plus vehicles for
older children, which would further increase congestion. He concluded that the density and
volume of traffic were his main concerns.

Kara Cooke, West Point: Ms. Cooke stated that she shared the same concerns as others,
specifically regarding density, traffic, and the potential decrease in property values. She agreed
with Mr. Haugen’s comments and expressed that she was comfortable with similar homes being
built in the area, acknowledging that she did not expect the land to remain a field forever. She
emphasized that she was not opposed to people moving in but was concerned that the

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 8 of 19



proposed development would significantly increase traffic and density beyond what she
considered appropriate for the area. She concluded by stating that she strongly opposed the
proposal and agreed with the concerns expressed by others.

Casey Picard, West Point (written statement read by Kara Cooke): Ms. Picard respectfully but
strongly opposed the rezoning of the lot discussed. She explained that she and her family had
lived in their home on 3830 W for the past 12 years and that the lot in question was adjacent to
their property. While acknowledging the growth of West Point, she expressed concern that the
city was prioritizing maximum development over preserving small-community values and
supporting small businesses. She argued that the proposed development would unnecessarily
crowd the land with too many homes and would not provide smaller or more affordable housing
for younger families, instead offering expensive homes on tiny lots. She urged reconsideration of
the zoning proposition.

Cande Booker, West Point: Ms. Booker expressed that she did not understand the need to
rezone and combine so many homes, especially given that townhomes were already being built
on 1800 N and were opposed in that area to preserve a small-town feel. She raised concerns
about the neighborhood’s infrastructure, noting that traffic on their street during events like the
Fourth of July resembled a major highway, with residents driving dangerously fast. She
highlighted safety risks for children and emphasized that families in the area wanted to raise
their children in a small-town community. She stated that overdevelopment, including
townhomes and twin homes across the street, had made it difficult to access their
neighborhood, particularly during school drop-offs and busy work hours, sometimes taking 20 to
30 minutes to travel from SR-193 to their street. While she was not opposed to change, she
believed that any new development should consist of normal houses rather than densely packed
units.

Tyler Bitton, West Point: Mr. Bitton stated that he agreed with the concerns expressed by
others. While he understood the reasons someone might want to pursue the rezoning, he
personally did not like the idea as a homeowner. He also expressed concern that even if the
rezoning were approved, the development plan could change afterward, potentially resulting in
something completely different.

Sean Neilsen, West Point: Mr. Neilsen stated that a twin home was proposed just east of his
house on 300 N, which raised concerns about privacy. He noted that he and his family currently
enjoyed their backyard without intrusion, but the proposed development could affect that. He
also echoed the concerns expressed by others, stating that they opposed the rezoning.
Additionally, he mentioned that when they moved in, they did not anticipate that the existing
driveway would eventually become a housing area.

Katie Haugen, West Point: Mrs. Haugen stated that she agreed with everything that had been
said and wished to have her position on the record.

Marv Drake, West Point: Mr. Drake stated that he lived just across the street from where the
entry would be and was not looking forward to the traffic it would bring. He noted that 4000 W
was already like a race track and adding more homes would not help. He acknowledged the

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 9 of 19



federal requirement for affordable housing but expressed concern about the impact on his
neighborhood and his friend Matt’s plans. He asked about green space and sidewalks along the
extension of Street A, noting that children currently walked on 4000 W and that safety would
not improve without proper sidewalks. He concluded by urging that the project not proceed.

Marilyn Olds, West Point: Mrs. Olds stated that she had lived on 4000 W since the fall of 1964.
She expressed concern about how residents would be able to get out of their homes, noting that
access to 300 N was blocked by a house built by Fred. She said she could not live on that street
due to feeling claustrophobic and questioned whether emergency vehicles like ambulances or
fire trucks could navigate the area. She added, somewhat humorously, about concerns regarding
where fireworks would be held. While acknowledging that the community had changed
significantly over the years, she stated that she was not in favor of the proposed plan.

Alex Toney, West Point: Mrs. Toney stated that he lived two houses up from where the entrance
to the proposed neighborhood would be. He explained that he had moved from California to the
area for the farmland and expressed his emotional disappointment about the development. He
said some neighbors had told him that attending the meeting was pointless because the
decision had already been made, which he found discouraging as a new resident. He voiced
concerns about increased traffic and roads becoming more congested due to the higher density
of homes. He questioned whether opposition from surrounding neighborhoods would have
influenced the decision. He added that he purchased his home for the farm lifestyle and was
frustrated that new developments around older homes often lead to restrictions on agricultural
practices. He strongly opposed adding more houses to the area but acknowledged that he had
no control over the outcome.

Tami Yeoman, a potential West Point City resident: Mrs. Yeoman stated that she had reviewed
the master plan and the general master plan but was concerned that the proposed rezoning to
R-4 did not appear to align with the general plan. She acknowledged she could be mistaken but
expressed agreement with other residents, emphasizing the need for caution in planning and
requested that the rezoning not be approved.

Bethany Everett, West Point: Ms. Everett stated that she lived off of 4000 W and agreed with
the concerns expressed by other residents. She noted that the city had grown significantly and
acknowledged that farmers might sell their farmland, but she opposed the construction of
additional townhomes. She cited the high number of homes already built across from the
elementary school and further down 4000 W, many of which were still for sale. She expressed
concern about traffic congestion on 4000 W, especially during school drop-off and garbage days,
and noted that adding an entrance from 3000 W could create additional challenges for
neighbors. Her primary concern remained the density from additional townhomes.

Jared Toney, West Point: Mr. Toney stated that certain aspects of life, such as having beauty in
the landscape and space for children to play, made life enjoyable. He expressed concern that
condensing residential housing into a small area, while making homes more affordable, could
create conditions less suitable for raising a family. He emphasized the importance of outdoor
space where children could play safely and families could have gardens. He also suggested that
development could be directed outward rather than condensed, allowing more space for

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 10 of 19



residents and preserving the benefits of land, including maintaining property values and
aesthetic enjoyment.

DeAnn Ross, West Point: Ms. Ross stated that her mother, Connie Lee, owned property on 4000
W, and she opposed the rezoning request. She expressed concern that 4000 W was already
difficult to cross and that adding another street with numerous homes would be problematic.
She agreed with many others present and noted that the rezoning could landlock her mother’s
property, but emphasized that her mother was grateful for the land she currently owned and
wanted to preserve it if possible.

Commissioner King motioned to close the public hearing
Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion
All voted aye.

b. Decision
Commissioner Roubinet clarified key aspects of the proposed R-4 rezoning and subdivision plan,
emphasizing that the plat established the maximum number of units and the basic layout,
limiting the development to 47 lots unless another rezone was requested. He noted that existing
farms adjacent to the development would not be required to change their land use due to
complaints from new neighbors. The R-4 zone allowed twin homes, which were distinct from
duplexes or townhomes, required individual ownership, could not be rented, and did not
increase density, offering a cost-saving alternative while keeping all 47 units.

Bryn MacDonald added that all streets in the subdivision would be public, with sidewalks and
park strips on both sides, and that private roads were not permitted in single-family zones. She
clarified that fencing would be required around the entire subdivision perimeter, using vinyl or
better materials, but not chain link, to ensure compliance with R-4 standards.

Matt Levitt, applicant, explained that he and his family had moved to the area valuing the open
space. He noted that he had created the lots on 3830 W 20 years prior and had cooperated with
the builder at that time, observing that no one had ever acknowledged the views or assisted
with maintenance of the adjacent ditch. He acknowledged that traffic had increased and that
change was difficult but necessary. Mr. Leavitt highlighted challenges with agricultural irrigation,
explaining that upstream development limited their full irrigation flow despite having water
shares for domestic and irrigation purposes, making farming increasingly difficult. He
emphasized that the proposed development was well under the R-4 zone’s maximum density,
increasing from 2.7 to 3.6 units per acre, and remained slightly below the zone’s minimum,
reinforcing that the proposal required adaptation while maintaining manageable density.

Commissioner Taylor inquired whether Street A would meet city regulations for width.
Commissioner Roubinet responded that although the legal description was difficult to read, the
street appeared to be 65 feet wide, and emphasized that a full-width public street would be
required. If the street could not meet the width requirements, no more than 30 units could be

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 11 of 19



accessed from it. Bryn MacDonald noted that the plan showed 65 feet, but final verification
would occur during subdivision review.

Commissioner Roubinet confirmed the plan conformed to the recently amended General Plan,
which had been approved by the City Council.

Commissioner Farnsworth explained that the Planning Commission’s role was to follow the City
Council’s decisions, even though the Commission had not initially recommended R-4 zoning,
noting that the Council had full authority while the Commission remained more limited. She
expressed concern that future developments on adjacent parcels would likely try to match the
street alighment and maintain cohesion. While she appreciated that the current proposal
remained effectively at R-3 density despite the R-4 designation, she was still concerned that the
twin homes were too tightly clustered and would have preferred single-family homes in those
locations.

Commissioner Wade raised safety concerns regarding 4000 W, particularly for children crossing
near 300 N, and asked about sidewalks or improvements. Bryn MacDonald replied that while
300 N was planned to be widened with sidewalks, there were no current plans for sidewalks on
4000 W, though traffic issues could be further reviewed. She also clarified that the Planning
Commission’s recommendation would go to the City Council, which would hold a final public
hearing and make the ultimate decision.

Commissioner Turner stated that he agreed with Commissioner Farnsworth noting that the
Planning Commission had initially denied the proposal on the General Plan, but it had been
approved later in the process. He expressed uncertainty about how the proposal fit with the City
Council’s vision and emphasized appreciation for Mr. Leavitt’s willingness to keep the density
below what was allowed, acknowledging concessions and changes made regarding streets and
layout.

Commissioner King questioned why the property was designated R-4 when the actual density
was 3.6 units per acre, which Bryn MacDonald clarified was technically R-3 density but still
allowed twin homes under the R-4 designation. Commissioner Turner also inquired about
minimum lot sizes and Bryn MacDonald and Commissioner Roubinet explained that R-3 required
8,000 sq ft, R-2 required 10,000 sq ft, and R-4 allowed 5,000 sq ft, offering more flexibility.

Commissioner Taylor raised concerns about Street A, noting he would not want to recommend
approval if it could not be constructed to full specifications. Bryn MacDonald suggested tabling
the item to address questions and public comments, which Commissioner Roubinet supported,
emphasizing that public feedback was taken seriously and could be further discussed in a work
session. Bryn MacDonald added that regardless of the Planning Commission’s recommendation,
the City Council would hold another public hearing and make the final decision.

Commissioner Farnsworth motioned to table any action on the rezone request of 13.14 acres of
property located at approximately 3900 West 300 North from R-2 residential to R-4 residential,
to allow time to address the public comments and answer questions until the next scheduled
Planning Commission meeting. Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 12 of 19



Commissioner King stated he was supportive of tabling the item to address questions and noted
that, although the zoning was R-4, the actual density was R-3, which he viewed as a positive
concession. He appreciated Mr. Leavitt’s cooperation and considered the compromise more
workable than full R-4 density, even if that may not have aligned with the City Council’s original
vision.

Commissioner Turner agreed, acknowledging that while none of the commissioners wanted
increased density, they appreciated the applicant’s efforts to limit it and to work with residents.
He also reminded the public that opportunities to provide input, particularly during the General
Plan process last December, were crucial, and emphasized that the applicant’s proposal was
fully legal even if it differed from community preferences.

All voted aye.

12. Discussion and consideration for a development agreement for property located at 3900 W 300 N;
Matt Leavitt, applicant
It was determined that the public hearing for this item would still be held, even though it would be
tabled, since this item and item number 11 coincide.

a. Public Hearing
Richard Roginski, West Point: Mr. Roginski stated with the development agreement on asking
for a higher number of town homes allowed is what it exactly looked like. To give the developer
just a little more and then a little more and a little more each and every time. He explained that
there were only nine, then it became ten, then more were needed, and he expressed
frustration, noting this had happened before and that he had read the minutes. He stated that if
they were going to move forward and say it was acceptable, then it was clear what was before
them. He recalled serving on a Planning Commission 25 years ago and said they never would
have seen anything like this, though he acknowledged that times had changed. He concluded by
reiterating his concern with going from nine to ten, stating it was wrong.

Tami Yeoman, a potential West Point resident: Mrs. Yeoman said it made sense to her that the
matter should be tabled until more facts were gathered and a vote was taken on what would
actually be done with the property. She concluded by saying that made sense to her and
thanked the commission.

Commissioner King to close the public hearing
Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion
All voted aye.

b. Decision

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 13 of 19



Commissioner Wade commented that for future considerations regarding twin homes, he
preferred rounding density down rather than up, staying within code. He asked if a duplex could
be allowed on 300 N under an R-2 zone with a development agreement, and Bryn MacDonald
confirmed it could. Commissioner Wade clarified he was only suggesting the idea, not
recommending it.

Commissioner Turner asked Matt Leavitt, applicant, why he wanted the twin homes included.
Mr. Leavitt explained that twin homes provide an alternative housing option for buyers.
Commissioner Roubinet added that in past city council meetings, affordability was a primary
reason for allowing twin homes, as they could help reduce the price per unit. Mr. Leavitt
reiterated that twin homes offered an affordable choice for buyers, especially since most were
not looking for or able to maintain larger lots. He noted that the lots in question ranged from
7,900 to 8,900 square feet, which fit well, and that the project was coming in below the
maximum density, closer to R-3 levels.

Commissioner Farnsworth motioned to table the discussion and consideration for the
development agreement for the property located at 3900 W 300 N until the next scheduled
Planning Commission meeting on June 26, 2025, to coincide with the discussion of the rezone.
Commissioner Turner seconded the motion. All voted aye.

13. Discussion and consideration to amend the Harvest Fields development agreement; Capital Reef
Management LLC, applicant
Bryn MacDonald explained that the proposed amendment to the development agreement for the
Harvest Field Subdivision affected only one lot, Lot 123 at 964 S 4475 W. The lot was currently at the
minimum size of 10,000 square feet, but the builder, Ovation Homes, requested a small adjustment
to the property line, about three to four feet south, to preserve existing trees along the northern
boundary and still allow a new fence to be installed. This adjustment would reduce the lot size by a
few hundred square feet, making it smaller than the required minimum, so the amendment was
necessary. The exact distance would be determined after a survey, though the current agreement
stated only that the lot could be less than 10,000 square feet.

Commissioner Turner questioned whether a minimum size could be set, and Bryn MacDonald
confirmed it could. Applicant representative Craig Jacobson explained that survey stakes showed
the property line north of the trees and confirmed the intent was not to reduce the lot more than
necessary, as that would devalue it, but simply to preserve the trees for the neighboring
homeowner. He suggested the amendment language could specify reducing the lot only as much as
necessary to protect the trees. Mr. Jacobson confirmed that while the trees were not in a perfectly
straight line, the intent was to keep them all and maintain good relations with the neighbor.

a. Public Hearing
Frank Weller, West Point (email): Mr. Weller wrote that the proposed adjustment by Capital
Reef management to shift the property line by three feet in order to preserve existing trees is
missing vital information necessary for an informed decision. At present, the proposed three
foot shift appears arbitrary. There is no verification provided that this distance is either

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 14 of 19



adequate to protect the trees or possibly excessive. Proper analysis requires first calculating the
critical root zone of the trees in question. Without this calculation, any adjustment may
inadvertently lead to long term damage to the trees or an unnecessary reduction in the lot size
missing information required for an adequate analysis before this proposal can be reasonably
considered, the following key information must be provided:

1. Type of trees involved.

2. Diameter of each tree measured at 4.5 feet above the ground.

3. Distance of the tree to the property line.

4. Professional recommendation from a certified arborist regarding the appropriate setback

distance between the fence and each tree.

Due to the lack of this essential information, this proposal should be rejected or deferred until a
proper analysis of the critical root zone can be conducted and a professional arborist
recommendation can be incorporated into the decision making process.

Commissioner Farnsworth motioned to close the public hearing
Commissioner Wade seconded the motion
All voted aye.

b. Decision
Bryn MacDonald explained that the agreement allowed the owner to convey a strip of land
along the north side of Lot 123 so the trees would be located on the neighboring parcel,
permitting the lot to be slightly less than 10,000 square feet. She noted the language could be
clarified but favored keeping it general to avoid issues with exact measurements.

Commissioner Roubinet supported the use of “sufficient” since it was difficult to know the
precise line, and Commissioner Wade added that all parties had aligned interests, so there was
no reason to impose a strict limit.

Commissioner King emphasized the importance of ensuring the agreement reflected what was
necessary to preserve the trees, while Mr. Jacobson stated their intent was only to lose as little
acreage as necessary to protect the trees and maintain good relations with the neighbor. He
noted that removing the trees would be easier and less costly but that they were acting at the
request of Boyd Davis.

Commissioner Farnsworth questioned Mr. Jacobson whether they had difficulty selling larger
lots in the project and he confirmed larger lots in the project had been difficult to sell, though
the adjustment would not change pricing.

The commissioners discussed tree health and the type of trees, with Mr. Jacobson
acknowledging they were box elders but reiterating the goal was to keep the neighbor satisfied.
He stressed that leaving the language flexible avoided future complications with lenders or
minor discrepancies and prevented potential legal disputes over boundaries. In the end, several

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 15 of 19



members agreed that keeping the language as “sufficient to save the trees” was the best
approach.

Commissioner Farnsworth motioned to recommend approval of the Harvest Field Development
Agreement amendment for Lot 123, as presented, and forward the matter to the City Council for
their final decision. Commissioner King seconded the motion.

Commissioner Farnsworth — Aye
Commissioner Turner — Aye
Commissioner Wade — Aye
Commissioner Taylor — Aye
Commissioner King — Aye
Commissioner Roubinet — Aye

The motion passed unanimously.

14. Discussion and consideration to amend section 17.60 to create an A-20 (Agricultural/half acre
minimum) zone
Bryn MacDonald explained that the A-20 agricultural residential zone was a newly created zone
designed to align with recommended changes to the general plan, which would designate new
areas for this zoning. The land use table for A-20 mirrored the uses in the A-40 zone, with the
exception of intensive commercial agricultural operations, which were excluded from A-20 because
it was considered too dense for such uses. Commissioner Roubinet asked about signs, and Bryn
MacDonald clarified that signs, including political signs, would still be permitted as in other zones
and should be marked with a “P” in the table. Bryn MacDonald further described that the A-20 zone
was intended to encourage large residential lots while still allowing agricultural uses. The maximum
density was set at 1.7, with a minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet, which was slightly less than a
half-acre but kept consistent with the naming system of A-40 being 40,000 square feet.
Commissioner King noted that the density allowed for potential roads or other development needs,
and Bryn MacDonald confirmed this. She added that the zone required a minimum frontage and
depth of 100 feet each, with setbacks consistent with the A-40 and R-1 zones: 30 feet in the front,
10 feet on the sides, and 30 feet in the rear. Animal enclosure requirements, carried over from the
A-40, mandated a 100-foot setback from dwellings on neighboring lots, which still worked within
the half-acre configuration of A-20 lots. Bryn MacDonald clarified that enclosures could be closer to
an owner’s own home, just not to neighboring homes. Finally, the A-20 zone was added to the list of
zones that allowed farm animals, following the same lot-size-based point system already in place,
without changing existing animal requirements.

a. Public Hearing
Tami Yeoman, potential West Point resident: Mrs. Yeoman expressed concern about the animal
requirements, specifically how far corrals or barns had to be from houses. She explained that in
her experience, people typically placed corrals next to their fences, and requiring them to be in
the middle of a property did not seem practical. She gave the example of a half-acre lot with 100
feet of frontage and 200 feet of depth, noting that if animals had to be set back 150 feet, only 50

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 16 of 19



feet would remain for use. She added that if an adjacent home was set farther back than the
requirement, it would create challenges for placing animals while still complying with the rules.
Her concern was that too many limitations might reduce the zone to just large lots without truly
supporting agricultural use. She emphasized the importance of maintaining opportunities for
residents to keep animals. She also noted that Davis County’s requirements for a half-acre,
20,000-square-foot lot included only a 25-foot rear setback compared to the proposed 30 feet,
which allowed for more backyard space, while the side setbacks were 10 feet. She suggested
these standards might be worth considering. She cautioned that if the new zone was created
with the intent of preserving agricultural rights, it should align with West Point City’s stated
value of protecting and preserving agricultural activities, which included corrals, barns, and
coops. She pointed out that city policy also emphasized reducing conflicts between agricultural
and non-agricultural land uses while protecting public health. She agreed with these policies and
concluded by thanking the group for their work and for listening to residents’ concerns.

Dixie Bunot, Hooper: Ms. Bunot stated that she still wanted to encourage the commission to
consider one-acre lots, even though she felt she might just be exhausting words and oxygen. She
explained that if one-acre lots were allowed, a developer could come in, pay the fee, and reopen
the master plan if needed. She pointed out that there were no large parcels left and that the city
could only expand so far west before running out of land. She emphasized the importance of
preserving areas for larger lots that combined agricultural and residential uses, noting it was
unfortunate that farmers had to rely on agricultural protection areas just to protect themselves
from frivolous lawsuits. She acknowledged that change was inevitable, but stressed that it could
be managed in a way that made the process easier. She remarked that development had already
spread quickly, and placing it at half-acre lots would only continue that trend. She urged the
commission again to leave more one-acre lots and expressed agreement with everything Mrs.
Yeoman had said, ending by thanking the group.

Commissioner Turner motioned to close the public hearing
Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion
All voted aye.

b. Decision
Commissioner Roubinet admitted he lacked expertise with corrals and suggested the group
consider reducing setbacks, such as from 150 to 100 feet, to provide flexibility without greatly
impacting neighbors. Commissioner Wade noted that while larger lots existed nearby,
developers typically maximized density, leaving fewer opportunities for a mix of lot sizes that
might better support agricultural uses. Commissioner King agreed that adjusting setbacks for A-
20 could allow residents more flexibility, especially compared to A-40, where larger lots made
compliance easier.

Commissioner Farnsworth suggested adding specific provisions for A-20, similar to CC&Rs in

other zones, while Bryn MacDonald confirmed the current standards were copied directly from
A-40 and could be revised if desired.

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 17 of 19



Commissioner Turner expressed concern about horses on half-acre lots but felt smaller animals
would be manageable. He suggested the city consider separate regulations for different animal
types and pointed out that lot configurations could vary widely, making uniform requirements
difficult. Commissioner Roubinet proposed strengthening the city’s animal regulations rather
than relying solely on zoning rules and suggested approving the zone now with the option to
revisit later. Several members agreed that conflicts already existed in the farm animal
regulations, meaning changes would be necessary regardless. Bryn MacDonald agreed that
updates would need to take place regarding farm animal codes.

Commissioner Turner suggested that future general plan updates include additional A-20 areas
rather than limiting them to a single location.

Commissioner Taylor motioned to recommend approval of the proposed A-20 zoning text
amendment as presented with the option to look at the animal text in a future meeting and
forward the matter to City Council for their final decision. Commissioner Farnsworth seconded
the motion.

Commissioner King — Aye
Commissioner Taylor — Aye
Commissioner Farnsworth — Aye
Commissioner Wade — Aye
Commissioner Turner — Aye
Commissioner Roubinet — Aye

The motion passed unanimously.

15. Staff Update

16.

This item was discussed during the work session under item number 2, Other Items.
Planning Commission Comments
Commissioner Taylor stated he appreciated Bryn MacDonald’s efforts during the meeting.

Commissioner King thanked everyone the public for attending the meeting and thanked the staff for
their hard work.

Commissioner Farnsworth had no comment.
Commissioner Wade had no comment.
Commissioner Turner had no comment.

Commissioner Roubinet thanked Bryn MacDonald for everything.

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 18 of 19



17. Adjournment
Commissioner Wade motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:26 pm. Commissioner Farnsworth
seconded the motion. All voted aye.

Chairperson — PJ Roubinet Deputy City Recorder— Katie Hansen

Planning Commission 06-12-2025 Page 19 of 19



WEST POINT CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES

3200 WEST 300 NORTH
WEST POINT CITY, UT 84015 AUGUST 28, 2025

WORK SESSION
6:00 PM

Planning Commission Present: Chairperson PJ Roubinet, Vice-Chair Rochelle Farnsworth, Commissioner
Adam King, Commissioner Joe Taylor, and Commissioner Spencer Wade

Planning Commission Excused: Commissioner Jeff Turner
City Staff Present: Troy Moyes, City Planner; Katie Hansen, Deputy City Recorder
City Staff Excused: Bryn MacDonald, Community Development Director

Visitors: Anthony Hind

1. Discussion of revisions to the sign code
Troy Moyes explained that the staff’s goal for the year was to complete a full rewrite of the sign
code, which had not been substantially updated since around 2010. At that time, the city looked
very different, and the existing code now contained many gray areas, especially since it primarily
addressed commercial development. About eight months earlier, staff had introduced the topic to
the Planning Commission, reviewing what could and could not be restricted under the First
Amendment. The rewrite is needed to produce an ordinance that is constitutional, fair, and easy to
administer.

He emphasized that regulations could not be based on the content or viewpoint of a sign’s message.
Instead, rules should focus on neutral factors such as size, placement, and setbacks. The 2015
Supreme Court case Reed v. Town of Gilbert, Arizona clarified that content-based regulations were
unconstitutional. For example, Gilbert had applied different rules for religious event signs, political
signs, and other categories, which the court struck down. Troy Moyes explained that if a regulation
required reading the sign to determine compliance, it was illegal.

He noted that the city’s current code contained categories such as political signs, real estate signs,
construction signs, advertising signs, and event signs, all of which were unenforceable under
constitutional standards. The city instead needed to establish general rules that applied equally
across all signs. For example, they could prohibit billboard signage on freeways altogether, but they
would need to clearly define what constituted a billboard to avoid ambiguity.

Commissioner Roubinet asked whether the new code would apply only to private property or also
to city property, noting that state law already regulated signs in public rights-of-way. Troy Moyes

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 10of 9



clarified that while UDOT controlled only the right-of-way, the city had authority over every parcel
of land within its boundaries. Commissioner Roubinet suggested that city property might be easier
to regulate with a simple prohibition, while private property could be handled separately. Troy
Moyes responded that the issue was complex because, for instance, if the city placed a sign on its
own property, it could technically be violating its own code. Therefore, the regulations needed to be
broad enough to account for such scenarios.

Commissioner King asked if regulation would then be limited to factors like placement, size, and
brightness. Troy Moyes confirmed, adding that all content-based sign categories in the current code
would need to be eliminated.

Commissioner Wade asked if the listed signs were still included in the current code. Troy Moyes
confirmed they were and explained that the city’s existing code technically violated free speech
protections because it identified content to determine where signs could or could not be placed,
mirroring the same issue that had been struck down in Reed v. Gilbert. Commissioner King noted
that those sections needed to be removed and replaced with more general regulations, which Troy
Moyes confirmed. Commissioner King emphasized that the focus should be on creating equity in
regulations without reference to content.

Troy Moyes explained that certain sign types, such as sidewalk signs, vertical banners, tube signs,
and yard signs, could still be defined in the code, but regulation should focus on aspects such as
size, location, and potential safety impacts. For example, temporary signs created problems because
the code defined them as limited to 30 days without clarifying whether removing and replacing
them restarted the time period. He pointed out that excessive temporary signage along major roads
could also create safety hazards by distracting drivers.

Commissioner Roubinet suggested that the city consider using language from the Utah Outdoor
Advertising Act, which already addressed event advertising and sign restrictions for public assembly
facilities. He also supported a blanket prohibition on signs on city-owned property to simplify
enforcement and proposed integrating limits into the landscape code. He added that intensity and
safety concerns, such as blocking intersections or driveways, could justify restrictions.

Troy Moyes explained that instead of making piecemeal edits, the city planned to repeal and
replace the code entirely with a clearer version that included visual examples distinguishing sign
types like pole signs versus monument signs. Commissioner Wade asked if regulations would differ
by zoning, such as allowing larger pole signs in commercial areas near freeway interchanges. Troy
Movyes confirmed zoning distinctions would likely be part of the code and emphasized that size,
materials, lighting, portability, and use of public property could all be regulated, but again, without
regard to message.

Commissioner Farnsworth asked whether only city signs could be placed on city property. Troy
Movyes said that might be a legal question, while Commissioner Roubinet explained that UDOT
already used a blanket prohibition, removing all advertising signs from rights-of-way except official
sponsor-a-highway signage. Troy Moyes noted that UDOT signage was different since it served
public purposes like safety and traffic control. He said the city had already prohibited billboards

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 2 of 9



through a prior amendment but needed to clarify definitions and eliminate confusing or
contradictory provisions, particularly around temporary signs.

Commissioner King asked if park strips counted as public property. Troy Moyes confirmed they were
part of the right-of-way and raised questions about political signs in such locations. He explained
that regulating those cases was complicated because many city streets lacked sidewalks, meaning
portions of front yards technically fell within the public right-of-way. The new code would need to
address such scenarios.

Troy Moyes added that temporary signage could be regulated differently in commercial and
residential zones, with distinctions made by size and duration. Commissioner Wade pointed out the
difficulty of regulating signs like real estate listings that often exceeded 30 days, since enforcement
could require removing and replacing signs. Troy Moyes explained that the city could not regulate
by content, so rules needed to apply equally. For example, allowing six-square-foot yard signs in
residential areas regardless of whether they were political or real estate signs. Commissioner King
agreed, noting that any mention of content created constitutional problems. Troy Moyes concluded
that even distinctions like permitting banner signs, but not grand opening banners would be
problematic because they referenced content.

Commissioner Roubinet suggested that political signs in park strips could be regulated as safety
concerns if they blocked visibility for motorists or driveways, though he questioned whether a
stricter approach might be necessary. Troy Moyes responded that the first step should be defining
types of signs—such as on-premise, freestanding, marquee, projecting wall, roof, and trailer signs—
since unclear definitions quickly created confusion. He noted the difficulty of determining whether
architectural features, like an ice cream cone on a roof, qualified as signage. Overregulation, he
cautioned, could make the code overly complex.

Commissioner King asked about including visuals in the code, and Troy Moyes confirmed that
graphics would help clarify measurements, such as sign height, and distinguish between monument,
pole, and pylon signs. He cited issues with light pollution, like at Ogden Clinic, and suggested that
photometric standards might be needed. Troy Moyes outlined elements of a new ordinance: a
purpose statement, definitions, measurement standards, placement, height and area rules,
enforcement provisions, regulations for temporary and prohibited signs, and treatment of
nonconforming signs. Nonconforming signs, he said, would remain legal until removed, after which
replacements would need to meet new standards.

Troy Moyes explained that some code sections, such as signs permitted by zone, referenced content
and would need to be eliminated. He noted that residential development signage was less of a
problem now but still raised questions about whether subdivision entry signs or developer flags
counted as signage. Commissioners debated whether new residential construction warranted
separate temporary sign allowances, but Troy Moyes said it was unlikely a new zone would be
created. Instead, clear definitions would prevent homeowners from misusing allowances intended
for subdivision entry signs.

Troy Moyes clarified that only narrow categories of sighage—such as obscenity, threats, or
incitement to lawless action—could be prohibited under free speech case law. Commissioner

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 3 0of 9



Roubinet asked whether such threatening signs were common, but Troy Moyes said they were rare.
He emphasized that while the city could regulate size and placement, it could not regulate content.

Commissioner Taylor asked if flags with words counted as signs, and Troy Moyes confirmed they
did, though he warned against overregulating unusual cases like holiday lights with text.
Commissioner King summarized that staff would strike content-based rules and bring back a full
rewrite, beginning with definitions, which Troy Moyes confirmed. He said the process would take
time, with Bryn MacDonald’s goal being completion by spring. Enforcement questions, such as
regulating dilapidated signs or distinguishing art from signage, also needed attention.

Commissioners discussed whether city murals or painted signs would require approval, and Troy
Moyes said some might need conditional use review. He agreed that lighting regulations for signage
could mirror those already in place for buildings, citing past examples where light direction and
intensity had been regulated. He also noted neighbor disputes in other cities where signage created
tension, reinforcing the need for clear rules.

Troy Moyes outlined next steps: Review definitions, create a zoning table, specify setbacks and
height, remove content-based criteria, and consider new options for freeway-adjacent or large
commercial centers. Discussion turned to electronic signs, with Commissioner Taylor raising
concerns about brightness at night. Troy Moyes said some cities required dimming during certain
hours, but warned that overregulation could discourage better design, as seen with a sign in
Syracuse that ended up less attractive due to strict rules. Commissioner Farnsworth suggested
requiring signs to be turned off after business hours, but Troy Moyes said such a rule would need to
apply to all and could overlap with dark-sky ordinances. He noted that Park City had very strict
lighting rules requiring downward shielding and dimming, but West Point would face challenges
with existing nonconforming signs. He also reminded commissioners that schools typically operated
outside city authority regarding signage.

Review of agenda items
This item was not discussed.

Staff Update

Troy Moyes reported that the A-20 zone had been approved with a change requiring a literal half-
acre minimum. The Matt Leavitt item remained tabled at City Council, while the landscaping
ordinance was scheduled for decision at the next meeting. Commissioner Roubinet noted that the
Weber Basin representative informed the Council their new meters could track both time and
duration of use, revealing some residents consumed 3,000—4,000 gallons of water weekly—an
amount intended for a full month. He expressed surprise at this finding. The Council also approved a
limit of no more than 35% lawn coverage for new construction. Additionally, the primary election
had been certified at a separate meeting.

Troy Moyes reported a new annexation for the Allen subdivision, which the City Council approved
with an A-5 zone designation. The annexation still requires approval from the county and the
lieutenant governor’s office.

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 4 of 9



He also updated commissioners on development projects. Ogden Clinic’s building permits had been
approved, with construction expected to begin soon. At Nielsen Crossing phases one and two,
developers tied into 2000 West and were preparing to record the plat so builders could begin home
construction. Bennett Legacy phase three had been submitted to the county, with permits
anticipated along 1300 North and 4500 West. Townhomes were also under construction at 4500
West and 1800 North.

Regarding the Cowley property, previously rezoned for 9—-10 lots, Troy Moyes said the project was
on hold while owners attempted to secure more property to make infrastructure costs feasible. He
anticipated delays until additional land could be acquired.

He also noted that the Foothill Ditch annexation, in dispute with Clinton City since 2019, would
likely bring a general plan amendment request in September. The property was previously tabled at
an R-4 designation of eight units per acre, while the city’s updated R-4 allowed six units per acre.
Developers were reportedly seeking nine units per acre with detached homes, though no formal
plans had been submitted.

Finally, Troy Moyes stated that the property south of Big O Tires—known locally as the house with

many rocks—might also come forward with a general plan amendment request to change its
designation from residential to commercial.

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 5 0of 9



WEST POINT CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING MINUTES

3200 WEST 300 NORTH
WEST POINT CITY, UT 84015 AUGUST 28, 2025
GENERAL SESSION

7:00 PM

Planning Commission Present: Chairperson PJ Roubinet, Vice-Chair Rochelle Farnsworth, Commissioner
Adam King, Commissioner Joe Taylor, and Commissioner Spencer Wade

Planning Commission Excused: Commissioner Jeff Turner

City Staff Present: Troy Moyes, City Planner; Katie Hansen, Deputy City Recorder

City Staff Excused: Bryn MacDonald, Community Development Director

Visitors: Anthony Hind, Mike Bastian

PWNPE

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Prayer — Commissioner Wade

Disclosures from Planning Commissioners

There were no disclosures from the Planning Commissioners.

Public Comments
There were no public comments.

Approval of minutes from the May 22, 2025 Planning Commission meeting
Commissioner King motioned to approve the minutes from the May 22, 2025 Planning Commission
meeting. Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion. All voted aye.

. Approval of minutes from the August 14, 2025 Planning Commission meeting

Commissioner Taylor motioned to approved the minutes from the August 14, 2025 Planning
Commission meeting. Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion. All voted aye.

Discussion and consideration to amend the development agreement for the Heritage Point
subdivision located at approximately 5000 W 2425 N; Mike Bastian, applicant

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 6 of 9



On June 17, 2025, the City Council approved a Planned Residential Unit Development (PRUD)
overlay zone and development agreement for 82.94 acres at approximately 2350 North 5000 West
known as the future Heritage Point Subdivision. The PRUD approval allowed up to 213 single-family
lots with a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet (as required by ordinance for the R-1 PRUD
overlay zone), in exchange for the dedication of regional trail connections, open space, and
architectural design standards. The applicant, Mike Bastian representing Heritage Point
Development, is now requesting an amendment to the approved development agreement.

Amendments to development agreements require a public hearing before the Planning
Commission, which then makes a recommendation to the City Council. The City Council will make
the final decision to approve, deny, or modify the request.

The applicant is requesting a modification to the approved development agreement that would
allow 46 lots in the Heritage Point subdivision to be slightly under the 10,000 sq. ft. minimum
required by the PRUD ordinance. The smallest proposed lots in this subdivision are approximately
9,819 sq. ft., with most lots between 9,820-9,944 sq. ft. According to the applicant, this adjustment
will provide “flexibility to design wider lots that can better accommodate single-level ramblers and
other home plans that require greater frontage, while preserving the overall neighborhood
character.”

Approved Concept Plan
[June 2025)

Proposed Amendment
(Aug 2025)

Total Lots

213

211

Lots < 10,000 sq. fi.

0

4{ri211bi

Smallest Lot Size

10,005 sq. ft.

9.819 sq. fi.

Density

2.568 units/acre

2.568 units/acre

Bonus Density

16%

16%

Open Space

202,753 sq. ft. (5.61%)

87,268 sq. ft. (5.61%)

Average Lot Width

95.36°

05.36°

Commissioner Roubinet noted that the smallest lot size had been reduced from 10,000 square feet
to 9,819 square feet, which meant a maximum reduction of about 200 square feet on 46 lots. He
observed that the change still resulted in fewer homes per square foot than before. Troy Moyes
explained that some lots had actually increased in size, balancing the reductions and keeping the
overall change under 20%. The only open space adjustment was about three feet, totaling less than
1,000 square feet, with no other changes to the plan.

Commissioner Wade asked if the adjustment was to accommodate specific house types. Developer
Mike Bastian of Lone Pine Development said some lots were widened to better fit rambler-style
homes, but most house plans would still work and none would result in unusually small homes. He

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 7 of 9



clarified that the reductions mostly involved shifting lot frontage and slightly reducing depths from
about 115 to 111-112 feet. He also noted a potential benefit of reducing required water shares
under Hopper Irrigation’s formula, though that was not yet confirmed.

Mr. Bastian explained that most changes occurred on the west side, while third-acre lots remained
unchanged. Troy Moyes added that only minor adjustments were made, including a slight shift to
the detention basin and road realignment. Mr. Bastian further noted that this road shift would align
with an established neighbor’s roadway, creating a shared access point supported by UDOT, which
improved circulation for both properties.

No further questions were raised.

a. Public Hearing
Anthony Hind, West Point: Mr. Hind stated that he had recently met with staff members Troy
Moyes and Boyd Davis. He explained that he had started a new organization called the Safe
Streets Collective, which aimed to make West Point a safer city for pedestrians, cyclists, and
disabled persons. He said he had floated the idea of replacing the standard sidewalk and park
strip with a bike path. Instead of requiring the developer to put in the sidewalk and park strip,
which he felt was somewhat wasteful, he suggested using that space for a dedicated bike path
of 10 to 12 feet in width. Mr. Hind noted that earlier in the day he had met with UDOT and their
trails division, and when he presented the idea to Stephanie from that group, she thought it was
an excellent concept. He said the plan would open the space for greater use, benefitting not
only pedestrians and cyclists but also disabled persons. He added that he had received frequent
feedback about 4500 West, where cyclists struggled to use the corridor because of limited
shoulders. He described riding near the new schools where the sidewalk zigzagged in what he
called “a mess.” Mr. Hind suggested that along 5000 West and 2425 North, each developer
could be required to put in a bike path section instead of a sidewalk. He explained that such a
requirement would make the area much more accessible for all people who were not in cars. He
concluded by stating that he would love to discuss the idea further and work toward making it
possible for the city.

There were no more public comments.

Commissioner King motioned to close the public hearing
Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the motion
All voted aye.

b. Decision
Commissioner Roubinet explained that part of the reason the development was approved in its
current form was because the developer agreed to dedicate green space for a future regional
trail connection. He noted that the city had been considering trail planning in the area, and this
section was intended to support those efforts. He added that 4500 West would likely not remain
in its current configuration once additional development occurred and suggested Boyd Davis as

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 8 of 9



9.

10.

the best person to consult regarding future plans. He also mentioned that UDOT was working on
connected trails and that the city already had a strong future trail network plan.

Commissioner King motioned to recommend approval of the proposed amendment to the
Heritage Point PRUD development agreement, located at approximately 2350 North 5000 West,
to allow 46 lots to be between 9,800 and 10,000 square feet as presented, and forward this
recommendation of approval to the City Council for consideration. Commissioner Taylor
seconded the motion.

Commissioner Taylor — Aye
Commissioner Farnsworth — Aye
Commissioner Wade — Aye
Commissioner King — Aye
Commissioner Roubinet — Aye

Motion passed unanimously.

Planning Commission Comments
Commissioner Wade had no comment.

Commissioner Farnsworth had nho comment.

Commissioner Taylor stated City Hall parking lot looks nice now that it has been repaved and new
lines have been painted.

Commissioner King commented on whether the proposal was suggesting replacing sidewalks and
park strips with a continuous blacktop bike path. He expressed support for the idea on certain major
roads, noting that as a runner he preferred blacktop over concrete because it was softer on the
joints and more comfortable for both runners and cyclists. He acknowledged that such a plan might
eliminate street trees in some areas but believed the benefits of a wider, shared-use path
outweighed the drawbacks. He concluded by noting that the responsibility for constructing the
paths would likely fall on developers and thanked the group for the discussion.

Commissioner Roubinet thanked the Planning Commissioners for their time and dedication as well
as staff for their hard work.

Adjournment
Commissioner King adjourned the meeting at 7:32 pm. Commissioner Farnsworth seconded the
motion. All voted aye.

Chairperson — PJ Roubinet Deputy City Recorder— Katie Hansen

Planning Commission 08-28-2025 Page 9 of 9



Planning Commission Staff Report

Subject: CUP Accessory Building — 4662 W 650 N
Author: Troy Moyes, City Planner

Department: Community Development

Date: September 25, 2025

Background
Scott Turner is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a 2,208-square-foot accessory

building on his property located at 4662 W 650 N. The property measures 0.96 acres, which is
equivalent to approximately 41,818 square feet. According to West Point City Code
17.70.030(A)(5), all accessory buildings that exceed 1,500 square feet, regardless of the lot size,
require a conditional use permit.

Process

Conditional Use Permits are administrative decisions, meaning the Planning Commission must
approve the application if it meets the specific standards outlined in the West Point City Code.
The City may impose reasonable conditions to mitigate potential impacts and ensure the
proposed use is compatible with surrounding properties. In the case of an accessory building,
approval is subject to compliance with requirements such as size, height, location, and overall
compatibility with the principal structure and neighborhood character. The Planning
Commission’s role is to verify that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, safety,
or general welfare of the community.

Analysis
The table below lists the relevant standards for this application as outlined in WPCC 17.70.030:

Accessory Buildings

Standard Required Proposed
Accessory buildings shall not occupy no more than

< 0 0
10% of the total lot area <10% 3:3%
Minimum lot size for taller structures (sq ft) >21,780 41,818
Max structure height <25 21’
Not closer than 5’ from the main building >5 100’
Must not be closer.than 15’ from any dwelling > 15° +100°
structure on the adjacent lot.

According to the West Point City Code, the side yard setback for all accessory buildings in the

rear yard shall be five feet. The rear setbacks are shown in the table below. The proposed
building is 21° tall, and therefore requires a 10-foot rear setback.




Accessory Building Rear Setbacks

Oto |10+to |18+ to

Wall Height (Feet
ght ( ) 10 18 25

Minimum setback (feet) 3 5 10

Eg 23!‘ é‘
8 | & 1
. L ] 15 5
e ; |
g | i
: [ .
| 1
‘ T«zu-—-
|

e |
B SIDE SETBACK

SDUTH 396,57




Max Roof Height

uuuuuuu

Lop Siding

Upper Celling

Stone
eeeee
= - - - X - &
— T 1T =T T —F 1T - —T——T
= . - S = T0 Foundation

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Scott Turner to construct a 2,208-

square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4662 W 650 N.

Suggested Motions

e Approve: I make a motion to approve the conditional use request for Scott Turner to
construct a 2,208-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4662 West

650 North as presented, with the following conditions...

e Deny: I make a motion to deny the conditional use request for Scott Turner to construct a
2,208-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4662 West 650 North.
This decision is based on the fact that the applicant cannot comply with the requested
reasonable condition(s) to [explain the reasonable condition that were suggested].=

e Table: I make a motion to fable the conditional use request for Scott Turner to construct
a 2,208-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4662 West 650 North,

until [explain why the item needs to be tabled].

Attachments
Application & Plans




Conditional Use gl

PH: 801.776.0970

Permit Application FAX: 801.525.9150

www.westpaointcity.org

All conditional uses located within West Point City shall comply with standards and regulations found in Section 17.40 in the official West Point City
Land Use & Development Code. Conditional Use Permits shall be required for uses listed in the Table of Land Use Regulations found in 17.60.050. A
conditional use permit may be revoked upon failure to comply with conditions set forth.

Applicant / Property Information

Applicant Name: Phone Number: Owner of Property?

X oM Tonen Ao\ 1SO—OAN\L X_ ves 1 No
Address: City: State: Zip:

Y662 «w  bSo v wesh povwk | IC EUols
Email Address: Current Zone: Size of Lot Size of Dwelling: / S_BS‘
N\ L\ wabe—. SceoH-@ brne, © qé :

Conditional Use Information

Conditional Use Type (i.e. home occupation, accessory building, signage, etc.) Siza of Proposed Structure (if applicable);
. g - %
Bae/v/ Siep /Swwg e 2208
b -
Business Name (il applicable): Federal EIN Number (if applicable): S4q. F1. of Space Intended lor Cenditional Use (if applcable)

2. 208

Detail Description of Conditional Use and Potential Impact on Residential Use:

Bose S\ellS oo Side flece o Pnelc
deale o Sdevence.

Neighbor Acknowledgment

Please have neighbors that adjoin your property sign below. Those individuals that sign below are only stating that they are aware that ycu are applying for a Conditional Use
Permit and not necessarily that they approve of the application or project.

Address

4//’74///// =¢)

U ode bv LSO AL
P Uoq (M- g0ON Z‘T(P/v/\

F?rmusco Mromwvang RbeVw 00 W Expintisca Ahamvang

Signatur

é;(V#n’/

EC’_X

LB

I hereby certify that the information provided for a conditional use permit comply with all **For Office Use Only**
requirements and standards of the West Point City Land Use Ordinance. | have read the West Point 50 Received Bayment
Subdivision and Land Use Ordinances and understand that submitting this Application does not MR y i
guarantee apptoval, s PR ;
A oA W g/ \2’/ ZOZ; AMOUNT PAID DATE RECIVED INITIAL
Signature 3 e Date £
Condiional Use Permit 475

-West Point City Conditional Use Permit Application - Updated June 2023 -



Planning Commission Staff Report

Subject: CUP Accessory Building — 4804 W 650 N
Author: Troy Moyes, City Planner

Department: Community Development

Date: September 25, 2025

Background
Samuel Wolfley is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a 1,750-square-foot

accessory building on his property located at 4804 W 650 N. The property measures 0.92 acres,
which is equivalent to approximately 40,075 square feet. According to West Point City Code
17.70.030(A)(5), all accessory buildings that exceed 1,500 square feet, regardless of the lot size,
require a conditional use permit.

Process

Conditional Use Permits are administrative decisions, meaning the Planning Commission must
approve the application if it meets the specific standards outlined in the West Point City Code.
The City may impose reasonable conditions to mitigate potential impacts and ensure the
proposed use is compatible with surrounding properties. In the case of an accessory building,
approval is subject to compliance with requirements such as size, height, location, and overall
compatibility with the principal structure and neighborhood character. The Planning
Commission’s role is to verify that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, safety,
or general welfare of the community.

Analysis
The table below lists the relevant standards for this application as outlined in WPCC 17.70.030:

Accessory Buildings
Standard Required Proposed
Accessory buildings shall not occupy no more than

< 0 0

10% of the total lot area <10% 4:4%
Minimum lot size for taller structures (sq ft) >21,780 40,075
Max structure height <25 14°
Not closer than 5’ from the main building >5 100’
Must not be closer.than 15’ from any dwelling > 15° +100°
structure on the adjacent lot.

According to the West Point City Code, the side yard setback for all accessory buildings in the

rear yard shall be five feet. The rear setbacks are shown in the table below. The proposed

building is 14’ tall, and therefore requires a 5-foot rear setback.




Accessory Building Rear Setbacks

i Oto |10+ to |18+ to
Wall Height (Feet)
10 18 25
Minimum setback (feet) 3 5 10

.

- WP 1
[

L4

2l -
¥

|

|




Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Samuel Wolfley to construct a
1,750-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4804 W 650 N.

Suggested Motions

e Approve: I make a motion to approve the conditional use request for Samuel Wolfley to
construct a 1,750-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4804 West
650 North as presented, with the following conditions...

e Deny: I make a motion to deny the conditional use request for Samuel Wolfley to
construct a 1,750-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4804 West
650 North. This decision is based on the fact that the applicant cannot comply with the
requested reasonable condition(s) to [explain the reasonable condition that were

suggested|.=

e Table: I make a motion to table the conditional use request for Samuel Wolfley to
construct a 1,750-square-foot accessory building on his property located at 4804 West
650 North, until [explain why the item needs to be tabled].
Attachments
Application & Plans




ication

westpointcily.org

All condi ion

2l uses loc
Land Use g

Developm

20 required for yer., CB12t10NS found in Section 17.40 in the officiat West Point City

. : =
Nditiong| USe perm;t May be rey K ~d Tor useg listed in the Table of Land Use Regulations found in 17.60.050. A
Oked upon failure o comply with conditions set farth,

Chemvar ol Pre it £y

Sk of Dl G

1750 sqft

E Lies T i %
1 Use Type .. home o cUpation. accessory buikding Signage, oy
T R T L Ele )

Accessory Building

- S ____—__________ —

Ehi-'lF";F- f\grr!‘"lr-||f..|1|'_-5,_.|;£e.',' -y % edoral EIN Normomr o i
I—} edaral EiN N e (1f ADpdca e

et | J.?E—S"-..-""NE""" of Condibions Use amag Poi

ential impact on Hes ioential Lise . : =

|' _ —Personal Shcp

I'I Al ‘W\
|'I %ﬁw_—“—'—-—-—-—-——.———-— —
*>

e
—-—._________________-_
| —————== SO S i

our property sign below, Those individuals that 8ign below are only stat, ng that they are aware that ¥ou are applying for a Conditional Use
Permil and nol necassanly thal they approve of the apphcation or project

Address S 2

4276 1v 65 1
AEOSWw  BoO p/

W

[—

| hereby certify that the information provided for a conditional us_e permit comply with all o
requirerments and standards of the West Point City Land Use Drn’mqncf.-. !' have ':f'm_f the West Pum
Subdivision and Land Use Ordinances and understand that submitting this Application does no
=

guarontee approval

025
Ward Wolfley 0%83/2 —

SagrGTure

Point City Conditional Use Permit Application - Updated June 2023 -
West Four ty Comdition






